
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

GREATER  BRIDGEPORT  AND  VALLEY  METROPOLITAN  PLANNING  ORGANIZATION 
Ansonia●Bridgeport●Derby●Easton●Fairfield●Monroe●Seymour●Shelton●Stratford●Trumbull 

Responsible Metropolitan Transportation Planning Agencies 
 
CONNECTICUT METROPOLITAN COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS NAUGATUCK VALLEY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

1000 Lafayette Boulevard, Suite 925  49 Leavenworth Street, Suite 301 
Bridgeport, Connecticut 06604-4902                                                                          Waterbury, Connecticut 06702 
Phone: (203) 366-5405 Fax: 366-8437  Phone: (203) 757-0535 Fax: 756-7688 
E-mail: mfulda@ctmetro.org  E-mail: rdunne@nvcogct.org 
 

 

Regular Meeting Agenda: September 24, 2020 at 10:00 AM  

 
**** ALL ATTENDEES MUST ATTEND REMOTELY **** 

Meeting access is remote only, consistent with provisions specified in Executive Order 
No. 7B.  

The meeting will be recorded 
Please join via web or phone as follows: 

Web: https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/946025621 
Phone: 1 (646) 749-3112   Access Code:  946-025-621 

 

PLEASE announce your name before making motions or offering comments. 

 

New to GoToMeeting? Get the app now at 

https://global.gotomeeting.com/install/946025621 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER MPO Chairman  

 

II. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  

 

III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

1. July 30, 2020 (Attachment A) 

 

IV. ACTION ITEMS  

1. Redesignation of GBVMPO: Resolution 2020-01 (Attachment B) 

2. Endorsement of the Ozone Air Quality Conformity Determination, 

Resolution 2020-06 (Attachment C) 

3. Endorsement of the PM 2.5 Air Quality Conformity Determination, 

Resolution 2020-07 (Attachment D) 

4. FFY 2021-2024 Transportation Improvement Program,  

Resolution 2020-08 (Attachment E) Click here to view 

 

V. OTHER BUSINESS: 

1. Next Meeting: 

i. November 19, 2020  

ii. A calendar will be presented at the November meeting 

  

GREATER  BRIDGEPORT  AND  VALLEY  METROPOLITAN  PLANNING  ORGANIZATION 
Ansonia●Bridgeport●Derby●Easton●Fairfield●Monroe●Seymour●Shelton●Stratford●Trumbull 

1

https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/946025621
https://global.gotomeeting.com/install/946025621
https://ctmetro.maps.arcgis.com/apps/MapSeries/index.html?appid=05a41f2e70694085b53ff43c50b70e6c


 

 

VI. ADJOURN 

Interpreters for any language are available upon request and at no charge; the request 
must be received within five (5) or more business days before the meeting.  
 

 

INFORMATION REGARDING THIS REMOTE ELECTRONIC PUBLIC MEETING 

On March 14th, 2020, in response to the COVID-19 pandemic and in an effort to reduce the risk of 

transmission by virtue of attendance at public meetings, Governor Lamont suspended in-person open 

meeting requirements and permits conducting public meetings remotely by conference call, 

videoconference or other technology. A copy of the full text of Executive Order No. 7B(1) is available for 

review via https://portal.ct.gov/-/media/Office-of-the-Governor/Executive-Orders/Lamont-Executive-

Orders/Executive-Order-No-7B.pdf  

Accordingly, the Greater Bridgeport Valley Metropolitan Planning Organization (GBVMPO) has selected 

GoToMeeting as the preferred technology application to conduct this remote public meeting in 

compliance with Executive Order No. 7B(1). This technology will permit up to 250 members of the public 

to participate in real-time in the public meeting via computer, tablet, smartphone or telephone via the 

access information set forth on this meeting agenda. It is highly recommended that any interested 

participant download and utilize the GoToMeeting software applications which are available in the 

meeting link below prior to the commencement of the meeting. Each meeting may have unique 

participation information, including access code, phone number and live link. Please be sure that you are 

accessing the correct information for the correct meeting. 

Any members of the public who desire to submit written information relative to the business set forth 

on the agenda may do so up to one hour in advance of the meeting via electronic mail to 

info@ctmetro.org 

Notice is hereby given that this remote electronic public meeting shall: 

1. Permit the public to view or listen anonymously, and when permitted, participate in real-time; 

2. Be recorded and posted to the Connecticut Metropolitan Council of Governments’ (MetroCOG) 

and the Naugatuck Valley Council of Governments’ (NVCOG) website within 7 days; 

3. Be made available to the public within a reasonable time (at MetroCOG’s and NVCOG’s offices 

or upon written request). 

In addition to standard parliamentary procedure as outlined on this agenda, the following special 

rules shall apply to all participants: 

• Please “mute” your microphone so as reduce background noise at any time you are not 

speaking. 

• Prior to speaking on each occasion, each speaker shall clearly state their name and title for the 

record. 

• The use of chat features are prohibited and will not be considered during the meeting if in use. 

Notice is hereby given that only 250 participants may access this remote electronic public meeting at 

any one time. 

2

https://portal.ct.gov/-/media/Office-of-the-Governor/Executive-Orders/Lamont-Executive-Orders/Executive-Order-No-7B.pdf
https://portal.ct.gov/-/media/Office-of-the-Governor/Executive-Orders/Lamont-Executive-Orders/Executive-Order-No-7B.pdf
file://///192.168.1.7/Data/MetroCOG/Board%20Meetings/FY%202020%20Meetings/20200430/info@ctmetro.org


 

 

Access is granted solely by the GoToMeeting technology on first access basis and is not within the 

control of the Greater Bridgeport Valley Metropolitan Planning Organization. While it is anticipated that 

this participant limit will be sufficient, should the participants reach said limit, the meeting may be 

adjourned and continued at a later date using technology appropriate to ensure all members of the 

public may participate. 

 

GUIDELINES FOR PUBLIC PARTICIPATION IN REMOTE ELECTRONIC MEETINGS 

Anyone who desires to address the Council must adhere to the following rules of participation: 

• The Board welcomes all public participation but asks that all comments be limited to items listed on 

the meeting agenda. 

• Please state your name and address for the record prior beginning your comment. 

• The GBVMPO presiding officer will limit each comment to 3 minutes in order to accommodate all 

members of the public that wish to speak.  The presiding officer may allow additional time at their 

discretion. 

• Written comments or statements on any topic within the purview of the body are always welcome and 

will be provided to all GBVMPO Board members. 

• Please be advised that immediate replies to questions/comments should not be expected. 

 

3



 

 
 
 
 
 

Attachment A 
 

Minutes of July 30th, 2020 
MPO Meeting 

  

4



 

Special Meeting 
Greater Bridgeport & Valley Metropolitan Planning Organization 

 
**ALL ATTENDEES ATTENDED REMOTELY** 

June 11, 2020 at 10:00 AM 
Connecticut Metropolitan Council of Governments 

1000 Lafayette Boulevard, Bridgeport, CT 06604 
 
 

Name Representing 
 
 
David Cassetti, Mayor (conference call) Ansonia 
Joseph Ganim, Mayor (Ken Flatto, Proxy) Bridgeport 
Richard Dziekan, Mayor  Derby 
David Bindleglass, First Selectman  Easton 
Ken Kellogg, First Selectman  Monroe 
Kurt Miller, First Selectman Seymour 
Laura Hoydick, Mayor, Chairman  Stratford 
Vicki Tesoro, First Selectman  Trumbull 
Joe Kubic GBT 
 
Patrick Carleton, Deputy Director MetroCOG 
Matthew Fulda, Executive Director MetroCOG 
Colleen Kelleher, Finance Director MetroCOG 
Meghan Sloan, Planning Director MetroCOG 
Rick Dunne, Executive Director NVCOG 
Mark Nielsen, Planning Director NVCOG 
Christian Meyer NVCOG 
Doug Holcomb GBT 
Sara Radacsi CTDOT 
Jennifer Carrier FHWA 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5



 

Minutes 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER  
The meeting was called to order by the chair, Mayor Hoydick, at 10:34am. 
 
Mr. Fulda performed a roll call.  
 

II. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
There was no public participation 
 

III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
1. September 29, 2019 (Attachment A) 

A motion to approve the minutes from September 29 was made by First 
Selectman Kellogg and seconded by Fist Selectman Miller. 
 
A roll call vote was taken. 

First Selectman Tesoro – yes 

First Selectman Kellogg – yes 

Mayor Hoydick – yes 

Mr. Flatto – yes 

First Selectman Bindelglass – yes 

First Selectman Miller – yes 

Mayor Dziekan – yes 

Mayor Cassetti – yes 

 

The motion carried unanimously. 

  

2. June 11, 2020 (Attachment B) 

A motion to approve the minutes from June 11 was made by First Selectman 
Miller and seconded by Mayor Dziekan. 

 

A roll call vote was taken. 

First Selectman Tesoro – yes 

First Selectman Kellogg – yes 

Mayor Hoydick – yes 

Mr. Flatto – yes 

First Selectman Bindelglass – yes 

First Selectman Miller – yes 

6



 

Mayor Dziekan – yes 

Mayor Cassetti – yes 

 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

3.  

IV. ACTION ITEMS  
1. Redesignation of GBVMPO: Resolution 2020-01 (Attachment C) 

Mr. Fulda explained that as discussed previously federal regulations require an 
affirmative vote from the Chief Elected Officials representing 75% of the 
population of the MPO along with an affirmative vote from the CEO of the largest 
city in the MPO, in this case Bridgeport 

The interpretation from Federal Highways is that an alternate would be permitted 
if you have a local framework in place. From Federal Highway’s perspective a 
proxy vote is allowed as part of a redesignation vote 

 

Mr. Dunne clarified that there had been prior discussion among staff and 
members regarding the 75% plus the concurrence of the primary city. In the past 
this had been discussed as two separate actions where the vote of 
representatives representing 75% of the population had to vote in the affirmative 
and the Chief Elected Official of the center city needed to concur.  

 

Mr. Fulda added that based on the population requirements, without the City of 
Bridgeport voting in the affirmative, the 75% threshold would not be met.  

 

Mr. Dunne wanted to note that there were not two separate actions. 

 

Mayor Hoydick inquired if Mr. Neilsen was weighing in or had Mr. Dunne covered 
everything. 

 

Mr. Nielsen announced that Mr. Fulda and Mr. Dunne had covered everything but 
reiterated what Mr. Fulda indicated. We were working under the assumption that 
we needed the CEO to be present for the vote. The ability to have a proxy made it 
a little easier. 

 

Mayor Hoydick noted that Mr. Flatto is the largest city’s proxy and understood he 
has had discussions with Mr. Fulda. Mayor Hoydick requested bringing the 
resolution to a vote and commented that if Mr. Flatto would like to address it, it 
can be done after the motion is made and seconded.  

7



 

 

Mr. Flatto confirmed after the motion is seconded he would like to start a 
discussion. 

 

A motion to approve the resolution for redesignation of the GBVMPO was made 
by First Selectman Miller of Seymour and seconded by First Selectman Dziekan of 
Derby. 

 

Mr. Flatto explained that on behalf of Mayor Ganim, Mr. Flatto was appointed 
proxy for a couple reasons; one being Mr. Flatto served on the MPO for many 
years and even chaired the MPO twice during that period, so he has a good 
working knowledge of MPO matters. In addition, Mayor Ganim’s scheduling, a lot 
of things over the last few months have taken a lot of time, during later morning 
hours he is often on calls. Bridgeport’s reservations about this matter still exist 
and is partly because of the confusion as to how this benefits the Metropolitan 
Planning Organization or the Greater Bridgeport Valley Region. Mr. Flatto is trying 
to understand so he can explain to his administration the benefits that would 
accrue to them and so far, has not heard a rational explanation as to why this is 
positive. What Mr. Flatto is concerned about personally, on behalf of Bridgeport, 
is that if this action were taken it would make the MPO’s number way smaller 
than any other MPO in the state. This causes significant reservations and then on 
top of that there has not been unanimity in the Valley. With all the uncertainties, 
as a proxy, Mr. Flatto cannot take affirmative action and would have to abstain. 
The Mayor has asked for more information, Mr. Flatto is trying to get that and 
appreciates the funding ramifications of this change should our MPO be reduced.  
Should we remain as a reduced size MPO, there may not be any ramifications 
now but Mr. Flatto does not know how to guarantee that there won’t be a change 
down the road with how the state allocates its formulas based on MPO size or per 
capita size, so Bridgeport has a lot of concerns. Mr. Flatto is hoping someone can 
explain some of the rationale or what they think the benefits are, which would be 
helpful. Mr. Flatto appreciated everyone’s patience and understanding of 
Bridgeport’s position. 

 

Mayor Hoydick thanked Mr. Flatto and based on the COG meetings, thinks that 
she can address Mr. Flatto’s question as to why the realignment was important to 
the Valley and the Greater Bridgeport Region. The Valley was aligning itself with 
Waterbury, as their largest city, and therefore focusing more of the resources and 
planning to the Route 8/84 corridor which is symbiotic to that section of the 
middle of the state, and for us it is exactly the opposite where we are aligned on 
the Metro-North/ 95 corridor. Our hope would be that after this redesignation 
happens we would be able to align ourselves with the towns on the Long Island 
Sound and 95 corridor. There have been discussions about this over the last two 

8



 

years with Chief Elected Officials of other towns, most are in favor but there a few 
who are not so we would be doing this process again. Like the One Coast One 
Future grant that we had when Congressmen Shays was in office, we saw the 
alignment of the coastal cities and municipalities in Fairfield County working very 
well to support all of our efforts, not just with transportation, which Mayor 
Hoydick understands the MPO body is about, but with marketing, housing, 
transportation and entertainment clusters that we experience. That collaborative 
model had just gotten off the ground when the grant funding was eliminated. 
That is Mayor Hoydick’s perspective and she encouraged others to share their 
thoughts. 

 

First Selectman Miller of Seymour added the three Valley towns are on board 
with this move so First Selectman Miller is unsure as to why Mr. Flatto is saying 
that the Valley is not in agreement. Shelton does not want to make the move and 
to the chairman’s point, something that has been discussed for three years now, 
Shelton is staying and Ansonia, Derby and Seymour would be the three towns that 
are moving. To Valley’s point they feel that they align better with the Waterbury 
MPO because of things like the Waterbury branch line and Route 8/84.Those are 
things that are extremely important to the Valley and this MPO is more focused 
on the 95 corridor and that makes 100% sense, it’s just a matter of where the 
importance lies for each group and for Valley it makes more sense to be with the 
Waterbury group. First Selectman Miller noted that this is not a new thing, as it 
has been discussed for several years. If Mayor Ganim has questions Valley would 
be happy to meet with him and have those discussions, but to date Valley has 
been unable to get a meeting with Mayor Ganim. 

 

Mr. Fulda asked Ms. Carrier, regarding the question Mr. Flatto has about funding. 
Mr. Fulda reached out to DOT last week regarding surface transportation block 
grant funding that exists for the Bridgeport Stamford urbanized area. Mr. Fulda 
forwarded this information to Mr. Flatto as well as the chairman. In accordance 
with federal regulations and as practiced by CTDOT, STP Urban, the money 
allocated to the Bridgeport Stamford area for transportation improvements, is not 
sub allocated or broken out by MPO. It is distributed to the entire urbanized area 
which is basically the majority of what is the Southwestern MPO, the Greater 
Bridgeport Valley MPO and does include some municipalities outside of the MPO 
because of the way some of the urbanized areas are aggregated and drawn 
statistically. That funding mechanism is never broken down by MPO so a 
modification to the MPO boundaries does not change how that funding is used. 
Mr. Fulda defered to Ms. Carrier at Federal Highways, but all of the funding 
mechanisms from Federal Highways, outside of LOTCIP funding which is state 
funded and given to the COGs, all of Federals Highways money is allocated based 
on either urbanized area or other statistical aggregations of areas that Federal 

9



 

Highways uses to group municipalities together in regions for funding. To Mr. 
Flatto’ question regarding future funding, there are no funding mechanisms that 
Mr. Fulda is aware of from the Federal Highways Administration that fund directly 
to any MPO and Mr. Fulda does not expect that to change, it has never been the 
case, it has always been statistical aggregation of the area that the funding is 
provided for.  

 

Ms. Carrier appreciated Mr. Fulda’s comments and is sure many are familiar with 
the Surface Transportation Block grant funding or STPBG, many items that are 
getting approved in the TIP regularly. It is correct that FHWA is looking at the 
urbanized area and the TMA or Transportation Management Areas. Primarily 
Bridgeport, Stamford, Trumbull and Shelton makes up the Bridgeport/Stamford 
urbanized area. The state may be able to talk a little about the LOTCIP funding 
and Mr. Fulda and Mr. Dunne can talk to that but Ms. Carrier thinks that that’s 
collaboratively coordinated at the MPO level but that is something that Ms. 
Carrier does not expect to be an issue. Ms. Carrier noted that Mr. Fulda’s 
comments agree with that. 

 

Mr. Fulda commented that LOTCIP is allocated by the CT Legislature and 
distributed by COG regions and not the MPO, so again Naugatuck Valley is already 
receiving the LOTCIP portions for the four valley municipalities and that would not 
change based on the MPO redesignation, nor would anything that comes to 
MetroCOG for LOTCIP. 

 

Mr. Nielsen added that Valley is part of the Bridgeport Stamford transportation 
management area, and because of that the MPOs in that area, SWRMPO and 
GBVMPO, created a Transportation MOU that talks about how we coordinate 
transportation planning and sets priorities for the federal transportation dollars in 
that TMA. There would be separate MPOs but staff works collaboratively on a 
wide range of issues. Even separated there would still be a lot of collaboration 
and the Transportation MOU requires the COGs to share documents and review 
and comment on each other’s documents and come up with a consistent 
coordinated transportation plan.  

 

Mr. Dunne noted that nothing really changes except for three items; we all have 
to sit in these interminable meetings where as Mr. Flatto’s predecessor from 
Fairfield said at the last vote there is not common interest, Fairfield and Trumbull 
at the time didn’t see any commonality with the Valley. The second thing, the 
MPO is wasting money frankly and the regions’ staff is being shorted funding 
because they’re forced to sub allocate dollars for planning from MetroCOG to 
Naugatuck Valley for these towns. Work is getting duplicated. Valley is doing 

10



 

work, technically MetroCOG has to check it out, there may be some overlap, small 
overlap, but overlap nonetheless and unnecessary. The last thing is, Mr. Dunne 
has not discerned a single reason not to do this that anyone has expressed that is 
practical and not political. Mr. Dunne welcomed Mr. Flatto to explain the 
positioning and opposition from Bridgeport. 

 

Ms. Radacsi added that funding wouldn’t be reduced in the sense for the work 
plan right now, the money comes and is allocated through MetroCOG and as 
NVCOG staff is working on using staff time it is just an administrative shift of the 
money that CTDOT would have to do in the future and would not be taking 
money away from the planning funds because that’s the way it is set up now. It’s 
administratively a minor process to change and transfer the money over. 

 

Mr. Flatto appreciated everyone’s comments and understood it had been 
discussed in the past and belabored and acknowledged everyone’s frustrations. It 
is a bit awkward, if it was a unanimous situation it would be an easier situation, 
but as the Valley is aware there is a member who is not happy about this 
suggestion and would be voting in opposition, making it difficult from some 
perspectives. Mr. Flatto promised to redouble efforts and have internal 
discussions in Bridgeport. To First Selectman Miller’s point, Mr. Flatto is unsure if 
anyone was able to reach Mayor Ganim but if Mr. Flatto can facilitate, which he 
has tried; but he will redouble his efforts and appreciates everyone’s 
understanding and his having to abstain, which is not what some people want to 
hear. Mr. Flatto thanked everyone for explaining so thoroughly. 

 

First Selectman Miller made a point of order, and noted he was not an attorney, 
that an abstention is an agreement with the majority in Robert’s Rules if he is not 
mistaken. Bridgeport has to vote yes or no and if they abstain the vote should 
count. 

 

Mr. Dunne deferred to Ms. Carrier but believed that the requirement is an 
affirmative vote from the major city. 

 

Mr. Fulda responded that having read the regulations recently, he believed the 
federal regulations would supersede Robert’s Rules, and required an affirmative 
vote from the largest city in the MPO, an abstention would not carry as an 
affirmative vote. 

 

Fist Selectman Miller would like to understand Bridgeport’s position, so he has it 
clear, even though there have been multiple valid points brought up by 
professional staff, this move makes sense. It would make sense and would not 

11



 

have any impact on the monetary aspect of it. The reason Bridgeport is not sure 
or does not want to move forward with this is because one city, that’s not 
affected by this, that’s not even moving, doesn’t feel that this is the right 
direction. The City of Bridgeport, essentially, is taking its cues from the city of 
Shelton.  

 

Mr. Flatto responded that the concern from Bridgeport is the size of the MPO and 
the reduction in the size of the MPO. The goal is to be a larger MPO at some point 
which is the rationale some of the predecessor members had expressed in the 
hope of doing it, but it didn’t get anywhere. Mr. Flatto thinks it is more than that, 
at the same time there are some valid points that he hears about the corridors 
and the difference in the corridors. Mr. Flatto has an administration that he works 
with and must weigh that aspect as well. The best suggestion that he can make is 
to find a way to get through this one way or the other, he knows it’s been a long 
time and everyone has been patiently asking about it for a while. 

 

Mr. Fulda promised to provide a verbatim text of the discussion from each 
person’s perspective so Mr. Flatto can have it for his discussions.  

 

Mr. Flatto responded that that would be helpful and thanked Mr. Fulda. 

 

Mayor Hoydick noted that there is a motion on the floor and pending the 
outcome, but based on how Mr. Flatto said he intends to vote, she anticipates 
this will fail. Mayor Hoydick thinks that another step the board can do is reach out 
to the Southwest MPO again and ask Chairman Stevenson to meet with 
MetroCOG to discuss all of this and the alignment with their largest cities who 
have been supportive of this change previously. We would have to revisit this 
again and maybe they would consider entertaining it and the vote can be 
simultaneous between the COGs and the two MPOs. Mayor Hoydick inquired if 
there was any other discussion. 

 

Mayor Dziekan commented that he meant no disrespect but felt that it was 
ridiculous that the three communities are being held hostage the way they are. 
Until a better solution can be determined for the City of Bridgeport, Mayor 
Dziekan felt the action was unfair and not right. 

 

Mayor Dziekan added that Bridgeport had this lined up as to how they were going 
to vote, they knew this years ago probably and to have the CEOs constantly here, 
who are all busy running cities, for Mayor Ganim once again not being present is 
showing total disrespect, especially to the three Valley towns who want to leave. 
Mayor Dziekan requested that Mr. Flatto sends that message to Mayor Ganim, 

12



 

personally from Mayor Dziekan that he is never here and Mr. Flatto get in contact 
with him and have a conversation, total disrespect. Mayor Dziekan wishes 
Bridgeport would rethink this, the evidence is there saying that it will be better 
for Bridgeport and the Valley. Its better for Naugatuck Valley and that’s what 
Derby is a part of. Mayor Dziekan notes Bridgeport has the 95 corridor and that’s 
what Bridgeport is more concentrated on. Mayor Dzieken commends them, and 
wants to see them do well, but needs the Route 8 sector being taken care of too 
and doesn’t see it working this way with the MPO. 

 

Mr. Flatto commented that he doesn’t believe Bridgeport is aiming to disrespect 
anyone and was sorry that is the way it was being perceived. He noted that some 
Mayors have been there for a while, this Metropolitan Planning Organization has 
been in existence for a number of decades, Bridgeport is very involved in the 
Route 8 corridor, Bridgeport is very concerned about the Route 8 Corridor just as 
they are concerned about the I-95 corridor. For all of those decades no one has 
made a suggestion for a community not to want to stay in this region up until 2 
years ago. It has not been a longstanding policy effort and he understands it’s 
been a long effort from personal perspectives but from the MPO perspective this 
is not a long-term goal. Mr. Flatto will take back all the positive points, not to 
sound too negative, and try to figure this out. 

 

Mayor Hoydick asked if there is any other discussion and requested that Mr. Fulda 
call the roll. 

 

Mr. Fulda called the roll: 

First Selectman Tesoro, Trumbull– Yes 

First Selectman Kellogg, Monroe– Yes 

Mayor Hoydick, Stratford – Yes 

First Selectman Bindelglass, Easton – Yes 

Mr. Flatto, Proxy Bridgeport – Abstained 

First Selectman Miller, Seymour- Yes 

Mayor Dziekan, Derby – Yes 

Mayor Cassetti, Ansonia – Yes 

 

Mr. Fulda announced the motion carried 7-0 with one abstention but as 
previously discussed federal regulations require a vote from the largest city in the 
MPO, in this case the City of Bridgeport with an abstention. Although the motion 
carried it did not pass the requirements of Federal Highways and therefore does 
not pass. 

 

13



 

Mr. Flatto inquired if there was a possibility of reconsideration in the next few 
months what would that process be. 

 

Mr. Fulda explained that because it was a motion that had a first a second and a 
vote, we can add the voting item to any action item. There would be no reason 
we could not raise this item again, there is nothing prohibiting that. 

 

Mr. Flatto noted that he would try to communicate through the Chair over the 
next month. 

 

First Selectman Miller clarified that for any business to be transacted by this MPO 
it takes two quorums, and a quorum of the Valley is 3 out of 5 to be clear. 

 

Mr. Fulda concurred that VTD has a vote on this board. 

 

First Selectman Miller inquired what would happen if Seymour, Ansonia and 
Derby chose not to go to meetings anymore. 

 

Mr. Fulda responded that there would be no quorum achieved as happened in 
late winter and early spring with the safety performance targets, in which case a 
meeting could not be called to order and no action items could be taken up. Per 
the bylaws of the GBVMPO it would require a quorum from the Greater 
Bridgeport Region as well as the Valley region. 

 

First Selectman Miller thanked Mr. Fulda and wanted to clarify on the record. 

 

Mr. Flatto expressed hopes that the board would recognize its responsibility as 
members to the MPO and how important business is needed. 

 

Mayor Hoydick clarified that the redesignation vote was in the affirmative with 
one abstention but because it does not pass the Federal Highways criteria the 
redesignation vote fails. 

 

Mr. Fulda stated that is correct. 

 

  

2. Amendment FFY 2018-2021 TIP/STIP, FTA Projects, Resolution 2020-05 
(Attachment D) 

14



 

i. 0410-xxxx, Greater Bridgeport Transit: Fareboxes & Cross Street Facility 
Rehab 

Mr. Fulda explained the resolution and turned the discussion over to Mr. 
Holcomb who noted the resolution is for the continuation of previous 
work. 

 

ii. 0036-xxxx, Valley Transit District: 2020 Administration Program 

Mr. Nielsen explained that every two years money is allocated to purchase 
administrative equipment. 

 

A motion to approve the resolutions was made by Mr. Flatto and seconded by 
Mayor Cassetti. 

 

A roll call vote was taken. 

First Selectman Tesoro – yes 

First Selectman Kellogg – yes 

Mayor Hoydick – yes 

Mr. Flatto – yes 

First Selectman Bindelglass – yes 

First Selectman Miller – yes 

Mayor Dziekan – yes 

Mayor Cassetti – yes 

 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

V. OTHER BUSINESS 
1. Next Meetings: 

i. September 24, 2020 

ii. November 19, 2020 

  

VI. ADJOURN 
A motion to adjourn was made by Mayor Cassetti and seconded by First Selectman 
Tesoro. The meeting adjourned at 11:17am. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
 
 

15



 

 
 
Matthew Fulda, Executive Director,         Rick Dunne, Executive Director,  
MetroCOG       NVCOG 
MPO Co-Secretary            MPO Co-Secretary 

 

16



Attachment B

17



 

 

 

RESOLUTION 2020-01 

RE-DESIGATION OF THE GREATER BRIDGEPORT AND VALLEY MPO AREA 

 

WHEREAS, the Greater Bridgeport and Valley MPO (GBVMPO) is the federally designated 

transportation planning agency for the Greater Bridgeport and Valley planning regions of the 

Bridgeport-Stamford urban area and consists of 10 towns and cities: Ansonia, Bridgeport, Derby, 

Easton, Fairfield, Monroe, Seymour, Shelton, Stratford, and Trumbull; and representatives of the 

Greater Bridgeport Transit Authority and the Valley Transit District;  

WHEREAS, as a result of Connecticut General Assembly action, in January 2015, the regional 

boundaries and regional planning organizations were merged, consolidated, dissolved or 

reorganized, all into the Council of Governments form;  

WHEREAS, as a result of this action the cities of Ansonia, Derby, Shelton, and the town 

Seymour became members of the newly created Naugatuck Valley Council of Governments; 

WHEREAS, the members of the GBVMPO have assessed this misalignment and, in 

consultation with all members, are proposing that the cities of Ansonia and Derby and the town 

Seymour separate from the GBVMPO in order to become members of and aligned with the 

Central Naugatuck Valley MPO. Furthermore, the City of Shelton will remain a member of the 

GBVMPO; 

WHEREAS, the NVCOG is the designated recipient of funds provided by the Federal Transit 

Administration, and is responsible for planning and programming of FTA funds for the four 

municipalities that comprise the Valley Transit District (VTD), the GBVMPO is proposing that 

the VTD separate from the GBVMPO; 

WHEREAS, the federal process to re-designate MPO boundaries is initiated at the local level 

and requires an affirmative vote by MPO members representing at least 75% of the population of 

the existing MPO, including the affirmative vote of the member representing the largest city in 

the MPO, and concurrence by the Governor.  

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that Greater Bridgeport and Valley MPO endorses 

and approves the re-designation of the GBVMPO boundary to separate the cities of Ansonia and 

Derby, the town of Seymour and the Valley Transit District from the GBVMPO metropolitan 

planning area, effective July 1, 2021 or at the concurrence of the Governor. 

 

GREATER  BRIDGEPORT  AND  VALLEY  METROPOLITAN  PLANNING  ORGANIZATION 

Ansonia•Bridgeport•Derby•Easton•Fairfield•Monroe•Seymour•Shelton•Stratford•Trumbull 

Responsible Metropolitan Transportation Planning Agencies 
 
CONNECTICUT METROPOLITAN COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS NAUGATUCK VALLEY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 
1000 Lafayette Boulevard, Suite 925 49 Leavenworth Street, 3rd Floor 
Bridgeport, Connecticut 06604 Waterbury, Connecticut 06702 
Phone: (203) 366-5405 Phone: (203) 757-0535  
E-mail:  mfulda@ctmetro.org E-mail: rdunne@nvcogct.gov  

18

mailto:mfulda@ctmetro.org
mailto:rdunne@nvcogct.gov


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the GBVMPO approves renaming the GBVMPO to the 

Greater Bridgeport MPO, as the federally designated MPO for the Greater Bridgeport planning 

region and designate the Connecticut Metropolitan Council of Governments as the host 

transportation planning agency for the newly defined Greater Bridgeport MPO area, effective July 

1, 2021. 

 
This resolution shall become effective as of July 1, 2021. 

We, the undersigned co-secretaries of Greater Bridgeport and Valley Metropolitan Planning 

Organization (MPO), Connecticut, do hereby certify that the forgoing resolution was adopted by 

MPO members representing at least 75% of the MPO area’s population and by the Mayor 

representing the largest city in the area at a meeting held on July 30, 2020, at which a quorum was 

present.  

 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
 
 
 
Matthew Fulda, Executive Director Rick Dunne, Executive Director  

MetroCOG – MPO Co-Secretary  NVCOG – MPO Co-Secretary 

 
 
 

Date:   

 

 

 

 

 

19



Attachment C

20



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

GREATER  BRIDGEPORT  AND  VALLEY  METROPOLITAN  PLANNING  ORGANIZATION 
Ansonia●Bridgeport●Derby●Easton●Fairfield●Monroe●Seymour●Shelton●Stratford●Trumbull 

Responsible Metropolitan Transportation Planning Agencies 
 
CONNECTICUT METROPOLITAN COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS NAUGATUCK VALLEY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

1000 Lafayette Boulevard, Suite 925 49 Leavenworth Street, Suite 301 
Bridgeport, Connecticut 06604-4902                                                                          Waterbury, Connecticut 06702 
Phone: (203) 366-5405 Fax: 366-8437 Phone: (203) 757-0535 Fax: 756-7688 
E-mail: bbidolli@ctmetro.org E-mail: rdunne@nvcogct.org 
 

RESOLUTION 2020-06 

RESOLUTION ON CONFORMITY WITH THE CLEAN AIR ACT OZONE  

FOR THE GREATER BRIDGEPORT AND VALLEY  

METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION 

 

WHEREAS, the Greater Bridgeport and Valley Metropolitan Planning Organization (GBVMPO) 

is required to submit an Air Quality Conformity Statement to the US Federal Highway 

Administration (FHWA) and to the US Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) in accordance 

with the final conformity rule promulgated by EPA (40 CFR 51 and 93) when adopting an annual 

Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) or when effecting a significant revision of the 

Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP); and 

 

WHEREAS, Title 42, Section 7506 (3) (A) states that conformity of transportation plans and 

programs will be demonstrated if: 

1. the plans and programs are consistent with recent estimates of mobile source 

emissions; 

2. the plans and programs provide for the expeditious implementation of certain 

transportation control measures; 

3. the plans and programs contribute to annual emissions reductions consistent with the 

Clean Air Act of 1977, as amended; and 

 

 

WHEREAS, it is the opinion of the GBVMPO that the plans and programs approved today, 

September 24th, 2020 and submitted to FHWA and EPA conform to the requirements of Title 42, 

Section 7506 (3) (A) as interpreted by EPA (40 CFR 51 and 93); and 

 

WHEREAS, The State of Connecticut has elected to assess conformity in the Connecticut portion 

of the New York-Northern New Jersey-Long Island, NY-NJ-CT Ozone Nonattainment area 

(Fairfield, New Haven and Middlesex Counties) and the Connecticut Department of 

Transportation has jointly assessed the impact of all transportation plans and programs in this 

Nonattainment area (Ozone and PM2.5 Air Quality Conformity Determination April 2020); and 

 

WHEREAS, The Connecticut Department of Transportation’s assessment (above) has found that 

plans and programs jointly meet mobile source emission’s guidelines advanced by EPA pursuant 

to Section 7506 (3) (A). 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the GBVMPO  

That the GBVMPO finds that the 2019-2045 MTP and the FFY 2021-2024 TIP and all 

Amendments conform to air quality requirements of the U.S. Environmental Protection 

Administration (40 CFR 51 and 93), related U.S. Department if Transportation guidelines (23 CFR 

450) and with Title 42, Section 7506 (3) (A) and hereby approves the existing Ozone and PM2.5 

21



Air Quality Conformity Determination, dated April 2020, contingent upon no major adverse 

comments are received during said period. 

 

CERTIFICATE 

The undersigned duly qualified and acting Secretary of the GBVMPO certifies that the foregoing 

is a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted at a legally convened meeting of the GBVMPO 

on September 24th, 2020. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 

                      

 
Matt Fulda, Executive Director    Richard T. Dunne, Executive Director  

MetroCOG – MPO Co-Secretary     NVCOG – MPO Co-Secretary 

 

Date:      September 24th, 2020 

 

 

 

 

 

 

22



Attachment D

23



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

GREATER  BRIDGEPORT  AND  VALLEY  METROPOLITAN  PLANNING  ORGANIZATION 
Ansonia●Bridgeport●Derby●Easton●Fairfield●Monroe●Seymour●Shelton●Stratford●Trumbull 

Responsible Metropolitan Transportation Planning Agencies 
 
CONNECTICUT METROPOLITAN COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS NAUGATUCK VALLEY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

1000 Lafayette Boulevard, Suite 925 49 Leavenworth Street, Suite 301 
Bridgeport, Connecticut 06604-4902                                                                          Waterbury, Connecticut 06702 
Phone: (203) 366-5405 Fax: 366-8437 Phone: (203) 757-0535 Fax: 756-7688 
E-mail: bbidolli@ctmetro.org E-mail: rdunne@nvcogct.org 
 

RESOLUTION 2020-07 

RESOLUTION ON CONFORMITY WITH THE CLEAN AIR ACT PM2.5 

FOR THE GREATER BRIDGEPORT AND VALLEY  

METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION 

 

WHEREAS, the Greater Bridgeport and Valley Metropolitan Planning Organization (GBVMPO) 

is required to submit an Air Quality Conformity Statement to the US Federal Highway 

Administration (FHWA) and to the US Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) in accordance 

with the final conformity rule promulgated by EPA (40 CFR 51 and 93) when adopting an annual 

Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) or when effecting a significant revision of the 

Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP); and 

 

WHEREAS, Title 42, Section 7506 (3) (A) states that conformity of transportation plans and 

programs will be demonstrated if: 

1. the plans and programs are consistent with recent estimates of mobile source 

emissions; 

2. the plans and programs provide for the expeditious implementation of certain 

transportation control measures; 

3. the plans and programs contribute to annual emissions reductions consistent with the 

Clean Air Act of 1977, as amended; and 

 

 

WHEREAS, it is the opinion of the GBVMPO that the plans and programs approved today, 

September 24th, 2020 and submitted to FHWA and EPA conform to the requirements of Title 42, 

Section 7506 (3) (A) as interpreted by EPA (40 CFR 51 and 93); and 

 

WHEREAS, The Connecticut portion of the New York – Northern New Jersey – Long Island, 

NY-NJ-CT area is designated a PM 2.5 attainment/maintenance area; and 

 

WHEREAS, The State of Connecticut has elected to jointly assess conformity in all PM 2.5 

attainment/maintenance areas in Connecticut (Fairfield County and New Haven County) and 

 

WHEREAS, The results of the required emissions analysis performed by the Connecticut 

Department of Transportation on the 2019-2045 MTP and the FFY 2021-2024 TIP and 

Amendments show that the implementation of the projects contained therein will result in 

emissions of PM2.5 in each analysis year that are less that the emissions of the baseline year; and 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the GBVMPO  

That the GBVMPO finds that the 2019-2045 MTP and the FFY 2021-2024 TIP and Amendments 

conform to air quality requirements of the U.S. Environmental Protection Administration (40 CFR 

51 and 93), related U.S. Department if Transportation guidelines (23 CFR 450) and with Title 42, 

Section 7506 (3) (A) and hereby approves the existing Ozone and PM2.5 Air Quality Conformity 

24



Determination dated April 2020 contingent upon no major adverse comments are received during 

said period. 

 

CERTIFICATE 

The undersigned duly qualified and acting Secretary of the GBVMPO certifies that the foregoing 

is a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted at a legally convened meeting of the GBVMPO 

on September 24th, 2020. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 

                      

 
Matt Fulda, Executive Director    Richard T. Dunne, Executive Director  

MetroCOG – MPO Co-Secretary     NVCOG – MPO Co-Secretary 

 

Date:      September 24th, 2020 

 

 

 

 

 

 

25



Attachment E

26



 

 

GREATER  BRIDGEPORT  AND  VALLEY  METROPOLITAN  PLANNING  ORGANIZATION 
Ansonia●Bridgeport●Derby●Easton●Fairfield●Monroe●Seymour●Shelton●Stratford●Trumbull 

Responsible Metropolitan Transportation Planning Agencies 

CONNECTICUT METROPOLITAN COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS NAUGATUCK VALLEY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

1000 Lafayette Boulevard, Suite 925 49 Leavenworth Street, Suite 301 
Bridgeport, Connecticut 06604-4902         Waterbury, Connecticut 06702 
Phone: (203) 366-5405 Fax: 366-8437 Phone: (203) 757-0535 Fax: 756-7688 
E-mail: bbidolli@ctmetro.org E-mail: rdunne@nvcogct.org

RESOLUTION 2020-08 

FFY 2021 ~ 2024 TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM FOR THE 

GREATER BRIDGEPORT AND VALLEY  

METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION 

WHEREAS, the Greater Bridgeport and Valley Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) is 

authorized by the Fixing America’s Surface Transportation Act (FAST Act) and related US 

Department of Transportation regulations to develop and endorse a transportation improvement 

program for the portion of the Bridgeport-Stamford urbanized area located in the Greater 

Bridgeport and Valley planning regions; 

WHEREAS, the Greater Bridgeport and Valley Metropolitan Planning Organization has, in 

cooperation with the Connecticut Department of Transportation, the Greater Bridgeport Transit 

and the Valley Transit District, jointly prepared the FFY 2021 – 2024 Transportation 

Improvement Program (TIP) for the Greater Bridgeport and Valley Metropolitan Planning 

Organization;  

WHEREAS, the FFY 2021 – 2024 TIP describes all projects programmed to receive federal 

transportation funding assistance from the Federal Highway Administration and the Federal 

Transit Administration over the next four federal fiscal years beginning October 1, 2020;  

WHEREAS, the FFY 2021 – 2024 TIP establishes project priorities, indicates project schedules, 

provides estimates of project cost and identifies federal funding program;  

WHEREAS, the financial plans for the FFY 2021 – 2024 TIP are included and demonstrate 

financial constraint to anticipated federal funding resources expected to be allocated and 

authorized to the State of Connecticut and the Bridgeport-Stamford urbanized area; 

WHEREAS, the FFY 2021 – 2024 TIP was made available for review and public notification 

and review of the proposed TIP was consistent with and followed the procedures set forth in the 

MPO’s Public Participation Program Handbook, as amended, including providing a 30-day 

review and comment period, holding a public information meeting, posting the draft TIP on the 

Connecticut Metropolitan Council of Governments (MetroCOG) and the Naugatuck Valley 

Council of Governments (NVCOG) websites and considering public comments in revising the 

draft TIP;  

WHEREAS, MPO endorsement of the FFY 2021 – 2024 TIP is contingent upon no major adverse 

comments being received during the public comment period. Any comments received during the 

Public Comment period will be reviewed and considered once the public comment period has 

ended. 

27



WHEREAS, the proposed FFY 2021 – 2024 TIP has been presented to the MPO, reviewed and 

discussed; 

 

WHEREAS, the proposed program of projects in the FFY 2021 – 2024 TIP were assessed for 

their impacts on air quality and the State’s ability to attain the National Ambient Air Quality 

Standards for the 8-hour Ozone and PM2.5 pollutants and the regional emissions assessments 

demonstrate that the proposed projects will not have an adverse impact on air quality. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED as long as no major adverse comments are received 

during the public comment period, the Greater Bridgeport and Valley Metropolitan Planning 

Organization, after reviewing the draft FFY 2021 – 2024 TIP Transportation Improvement 

Program for the Greater Bridgeport and Valley Metropolitan Planning Organization and 

modifying the program of projects based on public comment and revisions received during the 30-

day review and comment period, endorses the FFY 2021 – 2024 TIP presented and discussed here 

today as the official TIP for the Greater Bridgeport and Valley Metropolitan Planning Region. The 

endorsement of the TIP covers a four-year period from October 1, 2020 through September 30, 

2024.  

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the TIP approval constitutes project selection in accordance 

with the requirements of the Fixing America’s Surface Transportation Act (FAST Act). 

 

This resolution shall become effective as of September 24th, 2020. 

 

We, the undersigned co-secretaries of Greater Bridgeport and Valley Metropolitan Planning 

Organization (MPO), Connecticut, do hereby certify that the resolution adopted by the MPO at a 

public meeting held on September 24th, 2020, at which a quorum was present and that the same 

is a correct and true transcript from the original thereof. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 

                      

 
Matt Fulda, Executive Director    Richard T. Dunne, Executive Director  

MetroCOG – MPO Co-Secretary     NVCOG – MPO Co-Secretary 

 

Date:      September 24th, 2020 

 

 

 

 

 

 

28


	Untitled



